
- 1 - 

 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

 

MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 

 

TUESDAY 28TH OCTOBER 2025 

AT 6.00 P.M. 

 

PARKSIDE SUITE - PARKSIDE 

 

 

MEMBERS: Councillors P. M. McDonald (Chairman), S. T. Nock (Vice-

Chairman), S. Ammar, A. Bailes, R. Bailes, A. M. Dale, 

B. Kumar, S. A. Robinson, J. D. Stanley and H. D. N. Warren-

Clarke 

 

 

AGENDA 

 

 

1. Apologies for Absence and Named Substitutes  
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Arrangements  
 
To invite Councillors to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests or Other 
Disclosable Interests they may have in items on the agenda, and to confirm 
the nature of those interests. 
 

3. Citizens Advice (Uses of grant funding) (Pages 5 - 20) 
 

4. Local Heritage Action List (Quarterly Update) (Pages 21 - 22) 

.           Public Document Pack           .



- 2 - 

 
5. Levelling Up Fund Programme (Quarterly Update) (Pages 23 - 32) 

 
6. To consider any urgent business, details of which have been notified to 

the Assistant Director Legal Democratic and Procurement Services prior 
to the commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman, by 
reason of special circumstances, considers to be of so urgent a nature 
that it cannot wait until the next meeting.  
 
 

 

 

  

J. Leach 

Chief Executive  

Parkside 

Market Street 

BROMSGROVE 

Worcestershire 

B61 8DA 

 

17th October 2025 

 



- 3 - 

 

 

If you have any queries on this Agenda please contact  

Sarah Woodfield 

 

Parkside, Market Street, Bromsgrove, B61 8DA 

Tel: (01527) 64252 Ext: 1605 

Email: s.woodfield@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 

  

 

GUIDANCE ON FACE-TO-FACE 

MEETINGS 
 

If you have any questions regarding the agenda or attached papers, 

please do not hesitate to contact the officer named above. 

GUIDANCE FOR ELECTED MEMBERS AND MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

ATTENDING MEETINGS IN PERSON 

 

Meeting attendees and members of the public are encouraged not to attend a 

Committee if they have if they have common cold symptoms or any of the 

following common symptoms of Covid-19 on the day of the meeting; a high 

temperature, a new and continuous cough or a loss of smell and / or taste. 

 

Notes:  

Although this is a public meeting, there are circumstances when Council 

might have to move into closed session to consider exempt or 

confidential information.  



- 4 - 

 

 

 

INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC 
 

Access to Information  
 

The Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 widened the rights of 

press and public to attend Local Authority meetings and to see certain 

documents.  Recently the Freedom of Information Act 2000 has further 

broadened these rights, and limited exemptions under the 1985 Act. 

 

 You can inspect agenda and public reports at least five days before 

the date of the meeting. 

 You can inspect minutes of the Council, Cabinet and its 

Committees/Boards for up to six years following a meeting. 

 You can have access, upon request, to the background papers on 

which reports are based for a period of up to six years from the date 

of the meeting.  These are listed at the end of each report. 

 An electronic register stating the names and addresses and 

electoral areas of all Councillors with details of the membership of 

all Committees etc. is available on our website. 

 A reasonable number of copies of agendas and reports relating to 

items to be considered in public will be made available to the public 

attending meetings of the Council, Cabinet and its 

Committees/Boards. 

 You have access to a list specifying those powers which the Council 

has delegated to its Officers indicating also the titles of the Officers 

concerned, as detailed in the Council’s Constitution, Scheme of 

Delegation. 

 

You can access the following documents: 

 

 Meeting Agendas 

 Meeting Minutes 

 The Council’s Constitution 

 

at  www.bromsgrove.gov.uk 

 

http://www.bromsgrove.gov.uk/


CITIZENS ADVICE 

BROMSGROVE & REDDITCH

BDC Overview and Scrutiny 

Feedback

October 2025

P
age 5

A
genda Item

 3



KEY SUPPORT AREAS

a)Core Service

b)Household Support Fund Distribution

c) Affordability Assessments - BDHT

d)Outreach Development Project

P
age 6

A
genda Item

 3



CORE SERVICEP
age 7

A
genda Item

 3



CORE SERVICE - SUPPORT

£123,400 from BDC & £23,606 for WCC

Good news…….

Best funders by far in Worcestershire

National average was £1.34 per head in 23/24

Target = £138,397

We receive £147,006 – Thank You

Caveat……..

The whole voluntary sector funding model nationally is busted 
and even at £1.34 many of those services are going under

P
age 8

A
genda Item

 3



CORE SERVICE - PRODUCT

Advice – not information

Consistently High Quality “Assessed Service” – AQS, FCA, MaPS

Excellent value –Supported by 50-60 volunteers

Constantly improving –

2020 call answer rate – 24%

2025 Call answer rate – 38%

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 3



CORE SERVICE - DELIVERY

4,710 Households support with full advice

773 Households with light touch advice

£388,601 income gained

£676,674 Debts managed

Powerful Networking Partner

P
age 10

A
genda Item

 3



HOUSEHOLD SUPPORT FUNDP
age 11

A
genda Item

 3



HOUSEHOLD SUPPORT FUND

Paid £7,000 per annum to deliver

£50,000 distributed

Excellent example of partnership working

Great example of an “added value” project

P
age 12

A
genda Item

 3



AFFORDABILITY ASSESSMENTSP
age 13

A
genda Item

 3



AFFORDABILITY ASSESSMENTS - BDHT

£2,745 per annum

Work with clients applying for Social Housing to see if 
they could manage to stay in the private sector or 
their own home

Trusted by client as seen as being objective/neutral

One a week available

P
age 14

A
genda Item

 3



OUTREACH DEVELOPMENT WORKP
age 15

A
genda Item

 3



OUTREACH DEVELOPMENT PROJECT

£62,000 over 18 months – April 2025 to Sep 2026

Regular outreaches established in:

Charford

Catshill

Rubery

Wythall

Alvechurch

Sidemoor

Clent

Exploring HOW and Hospital

Numerous events attended across these areas and others

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 3



OUTREACH DEVELOPMENT PROJECT

123 clients so far this year

Age breakdown of clients

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

15-19 20-24 25-29 30-34 35-39 40-44 45-49 50-54 55-59 60-64 65-69 70-74 75-79 80-84 85-89

%
 o

f 
C

lie
n

ts

Age of Clients

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 3



THE FUTURE…….P
age 18

A
genda Item

 3



THE FUTURE

Demand likely to increase

Core – Local Government review? 

HSF – awaiting details.  Further outsourcing?

Affordability Assessments – use it or lose it?

Outreach Development – semi sustainable but really 
needs long term commitment.

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 3



QUESTIONS…….?P
age 20

A
genda Item

 3



Local Heritage List for Bromsgrove- Overview and Scrutiny Board Update  

October 2025 

 

1 The last report in July confirmed that the first tranche of parishes had been 

adopted, the website updated, and owners notified. 

2 It was also confirmed that a draft list for Wythall had been completed while 

work on LIckey and Blackwell continued. 

3 It was further confirmed that the part time conservation officer who had 

been on sick leave had left and the other, full time, conservation officer 

had left to take up a new post. 

4 This has therefore left the Principal Conservation Officer, also part time, to 

cover all of the conservation work since the beginning of July. Some 

development management work has been sent out to consultants. 

However, the Principal Conservation Officer is covering the majority of the 

work. There has been a 10% increase in applications over this period 

compared to same period in 2024 and almost twice as many Listed 

Building Consent applications (conservation officers are case officers on 

these cases). It was felt important to keep applications for pre-app advice 

in house as these cases can run for a long time, and due to the need to 

visit site, applications for discharge of conditions have also been kept in 

house. 

5 This increase in DM work has resulted in the Principal Conservation 

Officer struggling to take forward the Local Heritage List in a meaningful 

way. 

6 We have just taken on a consultant to work with us on the Local Heritage 

List, and it is hoped that this will help to get progress back on track. 

7 We will also be readvertising the conservation officer post which we were 

unable to fill over the summer. This will then allow the Principal 

Conservation officer to spend more time on the Local Heritage List. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Board  28th October 2025

  
 

LEVELLING UP REPORT – BROMSGROVE TOWN CENTRE 

REGENERATION 

 

 

Relevant Portfolio Holder  Councillor Karen May 

Portfolio Holder Consulted  Yes 

Relevant Head of Service Rachel Egan – Assistant Director 

Regeneration & Property 

Report Author Rebecca McElliott 

Job Title: Regeneration Programme Manager 

email:  

Rebecca.Mcelliott@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 

Wards Affected All 

Ward Councillor(s) consulted No 

Relevant Council Priorities Development 

Communities and Housing 

Infrastructure 

 

Non-Key Decision 

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in 

advance of the meeting. 

This report contains exempt information as defined in Paragraph(s) 3 of Part I 

of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, as amended in Appendix 

1 

 

 

1. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

 The Overview and Scrutiny Board is asked to RESOLVE that: 

  

1) the update on the progress of the Levelling Up Fund projects 

be noted.   

 

2. BACKGROUND 

 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to provide a quarterly update on the 

progress of all regeneration schemes funded through the Levelling Up 

Fund (LUF). 

 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Board  28th October 2025

  
 
3.  PROJECT UPDATES 

 

 Windsor Street Update 

 

3.1  As of the 3rd October 2025, Brownfield Solutions have completed 

phase one of the remediation strategy. This included groundwater 

monitoring following the removal of contaminated soil. These results 

have been submitted to the Environment Agency (EA) for technical 

review. Once they have completed their review, feedback will be 

provided to the Council. This is expected to be completed in October 

2025.  

 

3.2 Once feedback is received from the EA, the Council is likely to have to 

undertake phase 2 remediation which will include localised work in the 

remaining areas of the site that are still above the levels of 

contamination that the EA is willing to accept. This is in the south-east 

area of the site. There is an allowance within the existing budget to 

undertake phase 2 remediation works.  

 

3.3 The project is currently delayed due to the technical review by the 

Environment Agency. As phase 2 remediation is likely to take 6 

months, if it commences in November 2025, it will be completed by 

May 2026. This will not impact the delivery of housing on the site as a 

planning application will need to be prepared and submitted to the 

Local Planning Authority before any development can commence.  

 

3.4 Whilst the remediation strategy is executed during 2025 and 2026, the 

project team will present options for the future use of the site to Cabinet 

in November 2025, with a view to progress the preferred option 

following a decision. The Overview and Scrutiny Board considered the 

report in September 2025, and their preferred option was to deliver 

housing on the site in partnership with a Registered Social Landlord 

(RSL).  This option is also supported by the Cabinet Member. Thomas 

Lister have provided a development appraisal that forms part of the 

options paper. The project manager has also met with Homes England 

to discuss potential funding opportunities. Construction would not be 

expected to start on site until early 2027.  

 

 

 

 

Page 24

Agenda Item 5



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Board  28th October 2025

  
 
 

Nailers Yard Site 

 

3.5 Members will be aware that this project aims to regenerate a key 

brownfield site in Bromsgrove town centre by creating a vibrant new 

commercial and cultural hub on the former Market Hall site (which has 

been renamed Nailers Yard).  

 

3.6 An indicative design for the culvert was submitted as part of the Nailers 

Yard planning application prior to any works commencing on site. No 

civil/structural or detailed surveys were feasible during the Pre-

Construction Services Agreement (PCSA) stage due to accessibility 

issues whilst other ground condition and utility surveys were being 

undertaken. Therefore, a provisional sum of £220,256 was allowed for 

in the contract and it was envisaged that the works to the culvert would 

be able to be delivered within this budget. When this provisional sum 

was agreed, the design was only costed to RIBA stage 3. It was not 

possible to undertake detailed, intrusive surveys and it was only once 

the project had commenced that works could be fully designed and 

costed.  

 

3.7 However, following a full, detailed survey of the culvert in January 

2025, which is the earliest that this could be carried out following initial 

groundworks, measurement drawings were received in early April 2025 

which uncovered the exact direction and size of the culvert, plus 

additional gullies that feed into the culvert from outside the site 

boundary. Following this survey, flood remodelling was carried out 

using actual measurements, and the redesign of the culvert and 

landscaping area in conjunction with flood remodelling was undertaken 

which took a further two months. Kier Construction Limited then had to 

cost the works which was reviewed by the cost consultant from 

Arcadis.  

 

3.8 The fully designed solution to open up the culvert has been costed at 

over £1.6m by Kier Construction Limited and reviewed by Arcadis (who 

considered the costs to be reasonable).  

  

Page 25

Agenda Item 5



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Board  28th October 2025

  
 
  

Description Price Total 

Building works £757,851.84 £757,851.84 

M&E works £5,000 £5,000 

Design/fees £68,085 £68,085 

Prolongation £525,207 £525,207 

Change specific 

prelims 

£160,465.24 £160,465.24 

Risk and fixed price 

allowance 

£55,151.08 £55,151.08 

Insurance, overhead 

and profit 

£85,606.20 £85,606.20 

  £1,660,366.36 

 

3.9 Considering the agreed funding envelope and assuming that the 

Council is successful in securing funding as a member of the former 

Greater Birmingham and Solihull Local Enterprise Partnership 

(GBSLEP), the Nailers Yard project costs would increase the overall 

Levelling Up Fund programme budget beyond what was previously 

available by approximately £165,000. 

 

3.10 Therefore, an urgent decision was taken in August 2025 to commit a 

further £500,000 to the Levelling Up Programme. This provides the 

additional funds required to complete the Nailers Yard project and 

provides further contingency for any other potential unknown costs that 

may arise.  

 

3.11 Works to the culvert will extend the construction programme by 15 

weeks. The completion date was expected to be the 19th January 2026, 

and it is now the 6th May, 2026.  

 

3.12 The agents have already received a significant level of enquiries for the 

office space and food and beverage units in the commercial building. 

There has been more interest in the office units than there is space 

available and the agents are confident that all office units will be let due 

to the lack of good quality office space in the town centre. The 

commercial building will provide an ongoing revenue stream to the 

Council and the expected return on investment of the Council’s 

contribution to the Levelling Up Programme will be realised within six 

years of operation. This is based on the estimated rental income that 

Page 26

Agenda Item 5



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Board  28th October 2025

  
 

will be received per annum on the basis of guide rental price of £18-

£22 per square foot.  

 

3.13 The full business case (FBC) for GBSLEP funding was submitted to 

Birmingham City Council on Friday 1st August 2025. Clarification 

questions were issued week ending 29th August and a meeting was 

held to discuss these on the 3rd September. The final draft FBC was 

issued to Birmingham City Council on the 19th September. The FBC 

will be presented to the Enterprise Zone Programme Board on 22nd 

October, the Enterprise Zone Partnership Board on the 12th November 

and followed by a decision by Birmingham City Council’s Cabinet on 

the 20th January 2026. This will enable funds to be paid in Quarter 1 

2026/2027 towards the Nailers Yard project.   

 

 

4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS   

 

4.1 The Council has been given a further extension from the Government 

for the Levelling Up Fund to the end of March 2027. 

 

4.2 The original budget for the programme was £16.103m which was made 

up of the Levelling Up Fund and the Council’s contribution. This was 

allocated to the following projects within Bromsgrove:  

   

Project Funding allocated 

Windsor Street £3,471,000 

Nailers Yard (former Market Hall) £10,399,000 

Public Realm £2,233,000 

 

4.3 The public realm project was completed in early 2025 with a confirmed 

underspend of £927,335. Nailers Yard and Windsor Street projects are 

ongoing.  

 

4.4 Further to the Levelling Up Fund money (£14.5m) being awarded to 

Bromsgrove District Council, some additional funding has also been 

awarded to the projects in Bromsgrove.  These sums total £1.093m 

and are as follows:  

 

 

 

Page 27

Agenda Item 5



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Board  28th October 2025

  
 

Funding source £ total received 

UK Share Prosperity Fund 

(UKSPF) - Nailers Yard 

224,364 

Brownfield Land Release Fund 722,748 

UKSPF - Windsor Street 84,000 

Levelling Up Fund  62,500 

Total 1,093,612 

 

4.5 Thus the overall funding secured of £16.103m (£14.5m plus £1.6m) 

was increased by £1.093m to a total of £ £17.194m. With the additional 

£500,000 agreed by Bromsgrove District Council, this has increased to 

£17.694m. 

 

4.6 The final cost of the Levelling Up Programme is currently estimated to 

be £19.8m. This is made up of the following amounts per project –  

 

Project Total (£) 

Nailers Yard 15,004,552 

Windsor Street 3,490,000 

Public Realm 1,305,665 

 

4.7 The total amount of funding available to the projects, including the 

GBSLEP funding is £20,118,612.00. This is made up of the following 

amounts: 

 

Funding source Total funding 

Levelling Up Fund £14.5m 

Bromsgrove District Council £2.1m 

Additional funding sources 

(secured) 

£1.093m 

GBSLEP funding (not secured) £2.425m 

  

 Any underspend or additional funding received will reduce the overall 

Council contribution to the Levelling Up Programme.  

 

4.8 The Windsor Street project is delayed and the revised completion date 

is May 2026 whilst we await feedback from the Environment Agency. 

The current spend to date on site purchase, clearance and remediation 

is £3.199m (which is within the budget envelope of £3.490m).  

 

Page 28

Agenda Item 5



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Board  28th October 2025

  
 
4.9 Options for the Windsor Street site will be presented to Cabinet in 

November 2025 where Members will be asked to agree how the site 

will be delivered for housing. Each option will have different financial 

implications for the Council.  This report is due to be pre-scrutinised by 

the Overview and Scrutiny Board in November 2025. 

 

4.10 The Section 151 Officer signs off an assurance statement that is sent 

to the Ministry for Housing, Local Government and Communities 

(MHCLG) on a quarterly basis updating on progress.  

 

4.11 The Levelling Up Fund programme is being actively monitored via the 

MHCLG. Quarterly monitoring reports are submitted and reviewed. 

MHCLG have confirmed that the Council is progressing the projects 

and they do not have any concerns.  

 

  

5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 

5.1 There are legal implications arising from the contracts between the 

Council and various third parties (consultants and contractors). They 

are specific to each contract and assessed by the Council’s legal team.  

 

6. OTHER - IMPLICATIONS 

 

 Local Government Reorganisation Implications  

 

6.1 Following LGR, any ongoing revenue income from the Nailers Yard 

development and Windsor Street site will transfer to the new Unitary 

Council.  

 

Relevant Council Priorities  

 

6.2 This project supports the following Council Priorities: 

Economic Development, Communities and Housing and Infrastructure. 

 

6.3 The work on this project supports economic development and 

regeneration as well as a balanced housing market. 

 

6.4 The regeneration project at Nailers Yard provides workspace and will 

enhance the vitality and viability of the town centre with the extra food 

and beverage offer and the community space. 

Page 29

Agenda Item 5



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Board  28th October 2025

  
 
 

 Climate Change Implications 

 

6.5 Through the redevelopment of the Nailers Yard site, energy efficiency 

measures and Low and Zero Carbon technologies will be introduced 

with a view to reduce operational energy consumption and the 

associated carbon emissions targets. These include introducing U 

values better than Building Regulations Part L, mechanical ventilation 

with heat recovery (MVHR), natural ventilation where possible, utilising 

building thermal mass, high efficiency air source heat pumps and low 

energy LED lighting. The Nailers Yard site commits to achieving a 

minimum Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment 

Methodology (BREEAM) ‘very good’ rating on this site.  

 

 Equalities and Diversity Implications 

 

6.6 There are no specific equalities and diversity implications. 

 

7. RISK MANAGEMENT    

 

7.1  As part of the governance and reporting requirements, a risk register has 

been produced for each sub project. The key risks for each project are 

as follows:  

 

   

Project Risk Comments 

Nailers Yard Culvert works Potential impact on 

project budget and 

programme 

Nailers Yard Incoming electrics Potential impact on 

project budget and 

programme 

Nailers Yard Commercial building 

layout 

Potential impact on 

project budget and 

programme 

Windsor Street Remediation strategy Environment Agency 

need to sign off prior 

to any development 

on site 

Page 30

Agenda Item 5



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Board  28th October 2025

  
 

Windsor Street Redevelopment 

options 

Bromsgrove District 

Council to agree 

future delivery option 

for site prior to any 

works 

 

 

8. APPENDICES and BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 

 The Levelling Up Programme has been reviewed at the following 

meetings: 

 

• O&S Levelling Up Programme update report July 2025 

• O&S Levelling Up Programme update report February 2025 

• O&S Levelling Up Programme update report November 2024 

• Bromsgrove Town Centre Regeneration July 2024 

• Bromsgrove Town Centre Regeneration – Cabinet, 14th 
February 2024 

• Bromsgrove 2040 Vision, Cabinet 12th July 2023 

• Market Hall Proposal – Cabinet 15th March 2023 

• Market Hall Scrutiny – Overview and Scrutiny, 13th March 2023. 

• Levelling Up Fund Update – Overview and Scrutiny, 24th 
October 2022. 

 

 

9.  REPORT SIGN OFF 

  

 

Department 

 

 

Name and Job Title 

 

Date 

 

 

Portfolio Holder 

 

Cllr Karen May   

6/10/2025 

 

Lead Director / Head of 

Service 

 

 

Rachel Egan 

AD Regeneration and Property 

 

 

6/10/2025 

 

Financial Services 

 

 

Bob Watson 

 

6/10/2025 

Page 31

Agenda Item 5



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Board  28th October 2025

  
 

 

Department 

 

 

Name and Job Title 

 

Date 

 

 

Legal Services 

 

 

Nicola Cummings, Principal 

Solicitor – Governance 

 

 

06/10/25 

 

Policy Team (if equalities 

implications apply) 

 

 

Not Applicable 

 

N/A 

 

Climate Change Team 

 

 

Matthew Eccles 

 

6/10/2025 

 

Page 32

Agenda Item 5


	Agenda
	3 Citizens Advice (Uses of grant funding)
	Slide 1: Citizens Advice Bromsgrove & Redditch
	Slide 2: Key Support Areas
	Slide 3: Core Service
	Slide 4: Core Service - Support
	Slide 5: Core Service - Product
	Slide 6: Core Service - Delivery
	Slide 7: Household Support Fund
	Slide 8: Household Support Fund
	Slide 9: Affordability Assessments
	Slide 10: Affordability Assessments - BDHT
	Slide 11: Outreach Development Work
	Slide 12: Outreach Development Project
	Slide 13: Outreach Development Project
	Slide 14: The Future…….
	Slide 15: The Future
	Slide 16: Questions…….?

	4 Local Heritage Action List (Quarterly Update)
	5 Levelling Up Fund Programme (Quarterly Update)



